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I ndependent Aud itor's Report
To the Shareholders of MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statemenls of MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED and its subsidiaries {the Group') as well as the
separate fi0ancjal statements of irlR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED (the Company'), 'rihich comprise the mnsotidated and separate statement
of f,nancial position as al 30 June 2021, and the consolidated and separate stalement of prollt or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated and separate stalement of changes in equity and consolidated and separale statemenl of cash flovirs for lhe year lhen ended, and
notes lo the consolidaled and separate llnancial slatemenls, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In ouropinion, the accompanying ilnancial statemenls present iaidy, in all material respects, the financial position ofthe Company and Group as
at June 30, 2021, and its financial perfomance and its cash flows for lhe year then ended in accordance with tntemalional Financiat Reporting
Standards (lFRSs).

Basb for opinion

We mnducted our audit in accordance with lnlernational Slandards on Audiling (lSAs). our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in lhe Audito/s Responsibilities for the Audit of lhe Consolidaled and Separate Financiat Slatements section ol our reporl. We are
independent of the Group and the Company in accordance with the lnternational Ethics Standards Board for Ac.ountants' Code of Ethics for
ProfessionalAccountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our otherelhical responsibillties in accordance wilh the IESBA Code. We beiieve
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufiicient and appmpriale 1o provide a basis forour oprnron

Key Audit Matters

Key audil matlers are lhose matters that, in our professional judgmenl, were of most signficance in our audit of the financial slalements of the
cunenl period. These matlers were addressed in the mnlext of our audil of the financial statemenls as a whole, and in forming our optnio.
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

lnvestmed in Subsidiary -Consolidation aod Stand-Alone

Our audit procedurcs to mdigale he nsk include:

> We p€domed discussions wffi management to undeFtand their prccedures and
processes to preparc consolidated iinanqal st€temenb as well as pedomirg
restaternenl of pnor year f nanoar rlomaton

> We eviewed suppoftng dodmentation to ensure tte subsidiary lIEl the crilena for
consoiidation and management has applied lhe apprcpnate accounling standads.

> We eviewed the consolidaton prccedurag performed by Managemenl. We reviet{ed
managemeot's ehminaton of ntercompany balances 10 ensue amlraq and
appropnateoess. We also eview€d he standiloie finanoal numbeE used lo
p@pare he consolidated stalemenb to ensure deical acqJ.acy of consolidated
financial state[Enb

> We revle./ed Managem€nts calculatoa ol Noal-Contolling lnterest lor allfinanctal
yea6 presenled on he shtement of linanoal position and ensured herc weE no
clencalercls and iFRS 10was appiied applopdately.

> We reviev/ed management disclosurcs aod notes to the financial statemenb to
ensue lhey were accuEte and adequale in rcgads to he requiemenb ol iFRS 10

and IAS 8

The Company has Ecognized a new asset wodh 807
79,800,000 in subsidiary lt4ir Secunties Limited as al30 June
2021. This investrnent represenb 99 75% owneGhip n the
subsidiary as at 30 June 2021 Thrs rs the frlsl year ol
consolk ated ,inancial stalements and tIErc ale
inlermmpany transactons lakrng place between t\e ttto
enlities Cor6idenng these faclors, he overallnsk prclile ot
this tem was consldeed hrgh and was consdened as a key
audil fiatler
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The Compan/s consolkjaled PPE balance as al 30 June

2021 was 8DT 4.076 (BDT 3.840 Billion as at 30 June 2020).

This repEsenb 18% of Tolal AsseF of the Company (19%

of the Cofipany as at 30 Ju,'le 2020). The,e is estimatjon
pedomed by managernenl in rcgards to Asset useful life.

Eased on the rcquirement of estmates at]d tre facl that this

is a maior asset category, liis was detemne lo be a key

audit matier.

OLrraud I pmced!rcs incllded

> obtain an undeEtanding of Company's intemal controls, systems and processes

AOUNd PPE

> Perlormed d iscussions with management to undeEtand their process of debrmining

asset useful life.

> We pedorned PPE aoditons prccedurcs by obtainrg supporting documentalion,

invoices, and delivery informatron as well paymenb support
> We perfonrEd reasonability of depccjation expenses chaQed by management to

ensurc accuEcl and occufience.

> We perfomed discussions with management aod perbrmed olher co.loborating
pDcedues to ensu@ managemeflts assumpttons arcund impaiment werc

rcasonable.

> For disposals of assets, we obtained supporting documenlation t0 determioe the cost

and lair market value of he asset and lhen reviewed managements calqJlations to

ensure no clencaleroc look phce to c€hulate any,elaled gains or losses.

Detailed no&s regardlng Property, Plant & Equipment has been included In Note 5.00 and Note 5.004ln the Financlal Sgtements

Details ol Revenue Recognition are iflcluded in Note 27.00 afld Accouflts Receivable are included in Nole 10.00to the Flmncial Statement3

lnformation Other than the Financial Statements and Audltor's Reporl Thereon

Management is responsiblefor information other than fin ancial statements and auditols report. The other information mmprises of lhe Directol's

Report, Corporate Govemance Compliance Report and Management Discussion and Analysis. We expect to receive this other information after

the date ofour audito/s report.

Ouropinion on the Iinancial stalements does not cover the other informalion and we do not express any form of assurance mnclusion thereon.

ln conneclion with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informalion and, in doing so, mnsider whether the

other information is materially inconsistenl with the iinancial slatements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appeals to be

materially misstated. lf, based on the work we have pedormed on the olher information oblained prjor to lhe date of the audito/s report, we

mndude that there is a material misstalemenl of this other information, we are required to repon that fact. We have nothing lo report in this

reqard..

Responsibilities ol Management and Those Charged rryith Governance for the Financial Statements and lntemalControls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presenlation of lhe financial statements in acmrdance with lFRSS, the Companies Act

1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulalions and for such intemal conlrol as managemenl

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial stalements that are free from material misstatement, whetherdue to fraud or errol

ln preparing the llnancial statements, management is responsiblefor assessing the Company and Group's ability to continue as a gorng concem,

disclosing, as applicable, mattes related lo going mncem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends

lo liquidate the Company or Grcup orto cease operalions, or has no realistic altemalive but lo do s0.

Those charged wilh governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's llnancial reporting process.

> obtain afl undeGtanding ofCompany's intemalcontrols speciilcally geared

towards adoptron and lmplementation of IFRS 15

> Eramine customer contl"cb to detennine key anangements betlveen the

Customer and Company to undetstaod when contncloflhe goods

manufactured lransfer lrcm Company to Customer.

> Reviewing lnvoices, Shipping Dodrmelts and ohersuppoding
documentation to ensure rcveorle recognition is occufiing appropriately

> Examine Payment documenhtion to ensuie completion ol@venue cycle !s

documented appropdateiy

Ouraudlt pocedules included
Revenue ot BDT 3.242 billion (2.694 billion for the year 30

June 2020) is rccognized ln lhe income statement ol Mir

Akhter Hossain Limited for the cuffenlyear

This matenal tem ls subject to high inhercnt sk due to the

@mglexity of he systems and the pesence of individual

customer contl?cts whrch arc necessary for proper rc@dlng
and identificaton ol rcvenue.

Against this background, the proper applicalion of the

accounting slandads ls considered to be complex and t0 a

certaia extent based on estrmatesand assumptions made by

management
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Audito/s Responsibilities for tie Audit ofthe Financial Slatements

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether the flnancial stalements as a whole are free from material misstatement,

whelher due to fraud or error, and to issue an audito/s report lhat includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but

is not a guaranlee lhat an audit mnducted in acmrdance with lSAs will always detecl a malerial misstatement when it exists. l,Iisstatemenls can

arise from fraud or eror and are mnsidered material ii, lndividually or in the aggregate, they couid reasonably be expected to lniluence the

economic decisions of useB taken on the basis oi these flnancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with lSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audil We

alsol

> ldentify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or enor, design and periorm

audit procedures responsiye to those risks, and obtain audit evidence thal is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our

opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuliing from fraud ls higher thaf for one resulting from eror, as fraud may

involve mllusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, orthe ovenide of internal control.

> Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audil in older to design audil procedures thal are appropriate in the

circumslances.

> Evaluate the appropiaieness of accounting policies used and the rcasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made bY management.

> Conclude on lhe appropnateness of managernent's use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based on lhe audit evidence

obtained, whether a maienal uncerlainly exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Gloup's abilry to

continue as a going concem. lf we conciude that a material uncerlainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditois report

to the related Jiscl;sures n the financial statements or, ifsuch disclosures are inadequate, to modify ouI opinion.our conclusions are

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date ofour auditois report However, future events orconditions may cause the Group

lo cease to continue as a going concem

> Evaluale the overallpresentation, structure and content ofthe flnancialstalements, including the disclosures, and whether lhe financial

statements represent the undeiying lransactions and events ln a mannerthat achieves falr presenlalion. We communicate wilh lhose

charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, lhe planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including ary signitlcant deficiencies in ntemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged wilh govemance with a slatement that we have compiied wilh relevant ethical requiremenls regarding

lndependence, and to communtcate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 10 bearon our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with goyernance, we determine those matters that were of most signiflcance in the audit of

the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audil matters. We describe these matters in our auditois report uniess

law or regulation precludes public disclosure aboul the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we detennine that a rnatter should not

be comm-unicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits ol such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory RequiremenG

ln accordance wilh the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules '1987 and relevant noti,lcations issues by Bangladesh Secunlies

and Exchange Commission, we also repod lhat:

> Vie have obtained all the information and explanations which 10 the best of our knowledge and beliefwere necessary for the purpose

of our audit and made due verification thereofl

> ln our opinion, proper books of accounls, records and olher statutory books as required by law haYe been kept by the Group and

Company so far as it appeared from our examinalions ofthose booksl

> Financiai statements fd lhe year ended 30 June 20201 of subsidiary namely, l\,iir Secunlies Limited have been audited by us and

have been pmperly reflecied in the consolidated financial statements. We have expressed an unquaiifled opinion forthe company;

> The consotidated ind the separate stalements of financial posilion and statement of proill or loss and other comprehensive income

dealt wilh by the repo( ale in agreement wilh the books of account and rclumsj and

> The expendilures incuned were for the puryose oflhe Group's and the Company's business'

C yUGl$
Date 26october 2021

Dhaka, Bangladesh
DVC: 21 10280392A5948568

A.K. Gulam Kibria, FCA (#392)

Engagemenl Parlner

G. KIBRIA & CO.

Chartered Accountanls

DHAKA
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MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMTENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
& at 30 June 2021

E
Assets

l{on.Guarent ass€ls
Property, planl and equipmenl

lnvestrnent in Joint Venture

lnvestrnent in Projects

Cunent assets
S€curity Deposits (Retention Money)

Advance and Prepaymenb

Advance jncome tax net of tax provislon

lnventories

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Shareholders' equity
Share capital

Share premium

Revaluation Reserve

Non Controlling lnterest

Retained earnings

Non.cunent liabilities
Deffered tax liability

Long term loan

Cunent liabilities and provisions

Short term loan (Cunent portion of longlerm loan)

Defered LC

Liabilities for expenses

Totalliability
Total equity and liabilities

Nel Assets Value per Share

Chiet Financial Oflicer

4

5

6

4,075,655,901
'10,403,929,520

567,826,105

806,068,568

970,370,307

49,772,694

4,252,811 ,37 4

1,594,580,400

15,047,{11,526 11,684,267,206

3,840,446,370

10,315,894,731

527,926,1A5

732,923,403

951,889,504

48,134,478

3,525,944,685

476,915,521

7

8A
o

10

11A

12

13

148

14A

7

_____4J21J4!N_

1 ,207 ,715,470
1 ,042,28/.,530

107,539,881

173,984

197 I

3,325,976

1 131 077

4,873,468,063

101,927,%2

55,276,654

5,030,672,679

5,555,652,136 3,816,005,599

1,000,000,000

107,539,881

2,738,465,; i

3,325,976

13,470,491,349

2,612,089,755

349,455,672

138,712,446

15

16

12,134,690,051 13,113,817,325

16

17

18A

17,165,382,732

3,100,257,873

16,574,075,198

26.2A

_____4121il!@_

5l).86

C
A.K. Gulam Kibria FCA,

797

35.21

The accompanying notes form an inlegral part of these financial statements and are to be read in conjunction therewith

Dhaka, 26th October 2021

DVC: 21 1 0280392A5948568

Signed in terms olour reporl of even dale annexed.

30 JUNE 2021

Taka

30 JUNE 2()2O

Taka

? DHAKA

n A

(, o
GKCtN2l -2230

G. KIBRIA & CO,

Chartered Accountants

Mir Akhler Hossain Llmibd

5,735,8't3,501

____294U$,29L

@----z-
""m,*r\J^"\'$t'^ftqd-dil": z^,MH
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MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 0R LOSS At'lD OTHER COilPREHENSM INCOME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

30 JUNE 2021

Taka

Revenue

Cost ofexecution of the contract

Gross profit

General and administration expenses

Profil from operations

Non-operating income

Financial expenses

Prolit belore tax and WPPF

Contribution to WPPF

Profit before tax from own construction business
Tax expense

Cunent

Defened

Total Tax expense

Profit after tax from own mnstruction business

Profrt after tax from Joint Venture

Total net polit after tax for the year

Olher comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income tor the year

Total comprehenEive income attribulable to:
l!!ir Akhtar Hossain Limited

Non-Controlling lnterest

Basic and Dilutive Eamings per Share

19

20

3,242,277,000 2,694,959,701

0,928,782,658)(2,306 ,555,858)

935,721,142
(198,461,469)

766,177,043

(144,650,336)

737,259,673

16,382,166

il425,921,011)

621,526,707
'13,328,379

(379,093,795)

327,720,828

(16,101,305)

255,761,291

t'l 2,179,109)

24.1

24.2

3fi,619,523

(220,057 635)

__J
(220,057,635) (168,613,886)

91,561,888

367,884,649

74,968,296

300,038,702

26.1A

459,4t6,537 375,006,997

375,006,997

462,910,902

(26,016)

375,006,997

The acmmpanying notes form an integral part ofthese financial statements and are to be read in conjunction therewjth

\--S.*P'
Managing Director

S +\'cSt,.---'
harrpe6onFinancial officer

Dhaka, 26th October 2021

DVC: 21'10280392A5948568

c

tt"ho\suls6- \\or.\r

q
A.K. Gulam Kibria FCA, Partner

G. KIBRIA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

DHAKA

RIA
GKCtN21.22t30 Mir Akhler Hossain Llmiled

22

23

214

213,582,1E2

(168,613,886)

1.21 3.13

Secretary Director

Signed in terms ofour report of even date annexed.

Notes
30 JUNE 2020

Taka

Page 2



MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Fortlre ended 30 June 2021

I!t! Ilta Id! IlE
B.lrnc..! rt 0l July 2019 ,,0fl1,000,000 2,353,158,120 107,539,881 - 2,170,99t,601 3,170898,m1

Pofl afrer tax lor fie year 30 June m20 - 74,968,295 74 968,45 7r,968295

Proil afrer iar lrom Jcinl Ventue 300,038,702 - 300,038,702 3m,0!8,702

Balrna! .a n 0i Jut 2020

Poft afrer bx for tle year 30 June 2021

Proft ater lar from Joinl Venlure

NCI Portion of Loss in Sub6idiary

I,m0,0m,000

n7,715 474

2,738,$5,717 107,539,88'l ,,816,005,508 3,96,m5,59t

1,U22U 530
91,561,888

367,884 643

1250,000,0m

91,561 888

367,884 649

91,561,888

367,884,619

26,016 (26,016)

Total

Surplus

TotalSharecap al Share Premium

Balanceas at 30 June 2021

- The ecompanying notes Jom an inleEel perl ol hese financial statemenls and are lo be red n conjunction here1llih.

Dhaka, 26Ur Oclober m21

DvCr 21 1028039245948568

NCI Porlion of

Chief Finenci.l Otrcer

Ha\'\cv.\sa.N"s\.
sacnitry unclo{

Silned in teflrE ol our repon of even dab enao@d.

DHAKA
o

eR IA

eKctr'al-221]!

R€tained

Earnings

l{on-Conlrolling
lnlerest

W--:z_ _)--s,,--v (,ke-------
I .ging Dlr.cid / Ch.ip.,toll

C 6)C*t
LK Gutrm Xibria FCA, Prrtrcrfil

G.KIBRATCO. N
Ch.rterEd A.countdt \



Mir Akhter Hossain Limited
Consolidated Statement of cash flows

For $s yoar ended 30 June 2021

30 JUt{E 202't

Taka

A. Cslh ffowl lrom oporating activiti.g

Cash receipts lrom customers

Cash paid to suppliers and employees

Cash geneded ftun Wrdbn
lnmme tax deducted at source and paid

Nel cash genented trcn opardtng activities

C. C.sh flows lrom frnanclng .ctivitics

Total Loan net ot repayment

Cash inlow for MSL Shares (NCl Portion)

l$uance of nav shares through lPo
Share Premium

lnterest Paii
Net cash (used in)fton finalcing *tivilies

D. ilst increassr(docroaro) in carh and carh .quivdonb (A+B+C)

Unroalizei FX Gairv(loss) rslated to Foreign Cunency held

E. oponing cash and cash oquivalents

F, Closlng clsh and c!!h oquivslents (D+E)

t{Gt opsnting ca.hllow pcr sharc (Nots 26.34}

J-r'"
Chief Financial Officer ing Direc{or

Secretary

Signed in terms of our report of even date annexed.

Dhaka, 26h October 2021

DVC: 21 10280392A5948568

(39,900,000)

(E32,135,s17) (3,076,354,31E)

922,251,036

200,000

207,715,470

1,042,284,530

(425,926,163)

3,372,048,884

(379,093,795)

1,1 16,521,873 2,992,955,089

1,117,659,728

5,152

476,915,521

(20,589,836)

497 505 358

_____ff9!E!9J09_ _!Z0,9tt2L
1.E6 0.5E

e

t{"},o\.ru\ro.-Nos\r
Direclor

C
A.K. Gulam Kibria FCA, (#3e2)

G. KIBRIA & CO

Chartered Accountants

3,610,'t61,M9
(3,184,895,427)

2,994,998,403

.2,7U,246,83/.\
425,266,222

(221,695,851)

230,751,569

(167,942,147)

203,570,371 62,809,122

4

5

6

r/04,500,728)
(88,034,789)

(345,660,992)

(3,s34,028,548)

754,972,500

48,362,692

23

\-..'

DHAKA
\)

R A
oo

GKAAaI nN) PaSe 4 Mir Akhter Hossam Limiled

Notes
30 JUNE 2()2(}

Taka

B. Calh flowr lrom inyasling acliyities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

lnvestrnent in Joint Venture

invesfnent in FDR

lnvestment in Projects

Not cash used in inwsting activities

The accompanying notes lorm an integral part of these financial statements and are to be read in conjunction therer,lrith.

P.---_+- A4'-'-'-
C.haDpsrson



MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
STATEMTENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
tu at 30 June 2021

E
Assets

Nor|{unult aa!*
Propeiy, dant d equip.n€nt

ln'/osfneol in Jdnt Vonture

lnv€stn€ob in Mir S€flrilies Limited

lnv€stn€nl in Proj€cls

Curont [r€t3
Seartity Depcit (Reteoti:n [&ney)
Advanc€ and Prepaym€nts

Advance income lar n€t of tax p{ovision

lnventoriqs

Ca6h and cash €quivalents

Total assets

Equity and llabllltles

Sharoholders' oquity

Share capital

Share premium

Revalualion Reserve

Relained eamings

l{onrumft liabilitisg

oeffered tar liability

Long term loan

Cu.rsd lilbllltio. lnd pmvblonr
Shod term loan (Cunort porlion of longlerm loan)

M6ned LC

Liabililies for expens€s

Totrl li.bility
Totrl .qulty and llrbimbr

l{et Ar5€l3 Vllue por Sh!i6

Chief Financial Officer

Dhaka, 26th Oclob€r 2021

DVC: 21 10280392A5948568

4

5

6

7

I
I

10

11

4,075,655,901

10,403,929,520

79,800,000

567,8m,105

806,068,568

940,641,976

49,772,694

4.252.811 ,374
1,554,680,805

7,603,97s,116

22,731,186,912

15,127,211,526 14,684,267,206

3,840,446,370

10,315,894,731

527,926,105

732.929,403

951,889,501

48,1U,478

3,525,944,685

176,9r5,521

5,735,813,591

____29,12!p!9J9L

12 1 ,207 ,715,470
1,M2,284,530

1 07,539,88'l

3,208,318,829

3,325,976
't2,r31,38f,0r/

4,873,168,063

101,927,962

55,242,1U

5,565,858,710 3,846,005,599

1,000,000,000

107,539,881

2,738,465,717

3,325,976

13,470,491,349

13

14

15

16

12,134,690,053 13,173,817,325

16

17

't8

2,612,089,755

349,455,672

133.712,446

Tie accompanying notes form ar int€gral parl ol $ese fnancial statemenb and are to be read in coojuncibn tlera{ifl

\\A^A r bc^\b^V},--
al

5,030,638,1ry

't7,165,328,232

n,731,186,51L _____?9t29&u9z-

Director llanaEinE Direclor

Signed in terms ofour report of even date annexed. q
A.K. Gulam Kibria FCA, Padner

G. KIBRIA E CO.

Chaiered Accountant3

30 JUIIE 2021

Taka

30 JUt'tE 2020

Taka

RIA 4ooo
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MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Forthe year ended 30 June 202i

Revenue

Cost of execution of the mntracl

Gross prolll
General and administration expenses

Profit trom op€ntions
Nonaperating incorne

Financial expenses

Proit bciorr tax and WPPF

Contibution to WPPF

Proit botoE trr frcm own constructon busin$g
Tar expens€

Cunent

Defered

Total Tax expense

Profit alter tax from om construclion business

Profit after tax from Joint Venture

Totel nst profit sftGr tax for the year

Other comprehensive inmrne

Totrl comprohensive income for the ysar

B'3ic rnd Dilutivs Eamings per Shae

Chief Financial oflicer

Dhaka, 26th october 2021

oVC: 21 1 0280392AS94E568

25

Secretary

Signed in terms of our report of ewn date annexed

,I,H c.tw.-- Chrlrpo6on

Haho\sr,.\sa.- Nostr

300 038 702

469.853.fi1 375.006.997

169,853,111 ______!z9p90p9l

Director

E
19

20

24.1

24.2

3,242,277,000

(2,306,555,858)

2,694,959,701

(1,928,7q2,658)

935,721,112
(188,054,895)

766,177,013

(144,650,336)21

IJ

117,666,217

16,382,166

(425,921,011)

621,526,707

13,328,379
(379.093.795)

336,127,102

(16,101,305)

255,761,291

(1 2,179,'109)

322,026,097

(220,057,635)

(220,057,635)

101,968,462

367,884,649

213,$2,1E2

(168,613,886)

(168,613,886)

74,968,296

"lhe accompanying notes form an integral part o, these financial staternents and are to b€ read in conjunclion therewih.

q nxt%
A.K. Gulam Nibria FCA, Partner (f392)

G. KIBRIA & CO.

Chanered Accountantr

R A
oo

D H
(,
?
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26.1 4.30 3.43

L2

30 JUNE 2021

Taka

30 JUNE 2O2O

Taka



MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Forths year end€d 30 June2021

Balance aE at 0i July 2019

Profit afrer tar for he year 30 June 2020

Profit afrer t x frofi Joint Venure

Taka

1,000,000,qm

Taka

2,363,158,720

74,968,295

T.ka

2,470,998,601

74,968,295

Taka

3,170.998.601

71,968,45

r07,539,88'l

Retained

Earnings

Revaluation

Reserve

Total

ReseNe and

Surplus

Particulars Share capital I Share Premium

300 702

717 107

2,738,165,717 ,t07,539,881 2,8{5,005,508

702 300 102

Balance as at 0l July 2020

lssue of new shares

Profil afler tax for he year 30 June 2021

Profl aner lax from Joint Venture

r ,000,000,000

207,115,470 1,M2,2U,530

3,8,16,005,598

1,250,000,000

101,968,462101,968,462101,968,462

367,884,649

Ealance as at 30 June 2020

Balance as at 30 June 2021 71

The acco.npanying notes form an integral pad of lhese fnancial statemenb and are to be read in conjunction $eret{ift.

Dhaka, 26h mobe.202,
DVC: 21 

,l0280392A59,48568

Chief Financial Ollicer

A.K. Gulam Kibria FCA, Panner
G. KIBRIAE CO.

Chadered Accountantr

649 367

Chairpelson

710

m*, rt\;u"r'*".:;": s.Msv---=^
Signed in terms ofour reporl of even date annexed.

C
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Mir Akhter Hossain Limited
Statement of cash flows

For the yoar ended 30 June 2021

A. Cash flov',s from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers

Cash paid to suppliers and employees

Cash goneded lrcm oryntbn
lncome ta( deducted at source and paid

Net cash genented trcm opaoting activilies

B. Cash florvs from investing aclivities

Purchas€ of property, plant and equipment

lnvestrnent in Joint Venfure

lnvesfnent in Mir S€curities Limited

ln\,restment in FDR

lnvestrnent in Projects

l,let cash used in inves@ &tivities

C. Cash flouls fromlinancing aclivities

Total Loan net ol repaymeflt

lssuance of new shares $rough lPo
Share Premium

lnterest Paid

tlet cash (used in)lfrcn frnancing filivities

0. ilet incraaser(decrcase) in cash and caih equiyalents (A}B+C)

Unrealized Fx Gain/(loss) related to Foreign Cunency held

E. opening cesh and cash equivalents

F. Closing c83h and cash equiyalenB (D+E)

,{et Oporating Ca3hffow p€r rhare (Note 26.3)

213,610,776 62,809,422

(704,500,728)

(88,034,789)

(79,800,000)

(39,900,000)

754,972,500

48,362,692

(912,235,s17)

922,251,036

207,715,470

1,U2,2U,530
(425,926,161I

3,372,048,884

0.58

g,

A.K. Gulam Kibria FCA,

3,6't 0, 1 61 ,649
(3 jM ,795 p?2)

2,994,998,403
(2,7U,246,83/.)

465,366,627

(221,695,851)

230,751,569

(167 ,%2,147)

(34s,660,992)

(3,s34,028,s48)

(379,093,795)

'1,746,321,813 2,992,955,089

1,077,760,133

5,152

476,915,521

(20,589,836)

497,505,3s8

-____$$9gr9l 176,915,521

2.23

Chief Financial Oflicer

Ls-,*?
{Xnaging oireaor

Secretary

Ha\a\srJs^-Nodr
Direclor

Signed in terms of our report of even date annexed

C
Dhaka, 26th October 2021

DVC: 2'1 10280392A3948568

DHAKA

R A d

*o

GRCIll2l.2fi

G. KIBRIA & CO

Chartered Account nts

(#3s2)

Mir Akhler Hossain Limiled

30 JUNE 2021

Taka

30 JUNE 2020

Taka

(3,076,351,318)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements and are to be read in conjunction there',rith.

tZ----"2- V\tSSat"-t
Chairperson
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M!R AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and forlhe period ended 30 June 202'l

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1 Legal Stalus and Nature ot the Company

l\4ir Akhter Hossain Limited fMAHL"l ',vas 
incorporated as Pnvate Company Limited by shares on July 18, 1980 vide

registration # C-8196/35 with Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firm under the Companies act, 1913.

The company an its extra ordinary general meeting held on 3rd and 10th January,2017 made some amendments to

the l\4emorandum and Articles of Association of the company with a view to converting it into a Public Limited

company, increasing its authorized capital, decreasing the denomination of face value of shares ,complying with the

Companies Act '1994, which were appmved by the Registrar ol Joint Stock Companies and Firms, Dhaka. On

January 26, 202'1, the Company was listed on the Dhaka Stock 6(change (DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange

(CSE)through lntial Public Ofienng (lPO).

The address of the corporate office ot the company is at Red Crescent Borak Tower, Level 7 & 10,71-72 Old

Elephant road, Eskaton Garden, Dhaka-1000.

The company or,/{ns and operates a construction business. ln addition to worling under its ofln name, IIIAHL also

executes several construction work under Joint Venture agreements. The company was also involved in trading of
cigaretles. Hor,rrever from July 01, 2017 the company has discontinued its cigarettes busrness as per decision of its

Board ireeting dated September 20, 2017 with retrospective effect from 01 July 2017 All inventory held for the

cigarette business were disposed in the year at book market value resulting in no gain or loss on disposal.

oescriotion of subsidiaries and associates

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to,

variable retums from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over

the entity. The linancial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date

on rrrhich control commences until the date on which control ceases

ir Securiti$ Limit6d

Mir Secuities Limited ('MSL')was incorporated in Bangladesh on 2 March 2021 vide registration # C-16934U2021 as

a private company limited by shares under the Companies Act, 1994. The registered offce of the Company is

situated at Red Crescent Eorak Tor,trcr, Level # 7 & 10,37l3lA, Easkaton Garden, Dhaka. lt is a subsidiary Company

of MirAkhter Hossain Ltd that holds 99.75% owneGhip of the Company.

The main objective of Mir Securities Limited is to acl as a member of stock exchanges, the central depository system

(CDS) companies and to carry on the business of broker, jobbers or dealers in stocks, shares, s€curities, bonds,

debentures. The Company is cunently in the process of obtaining their Trading Right Entitlement Certificate

(TREC)from Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)

2. Basis of preparation

21 Statement ol compliance

These financial statements are individual fnancial statements of i/AHL, and have been prepared in accordance with

lntemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules,

1987, relevant guidelines issued by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) , lncome Tax

Ordinance 19M, VAT and Supplementary duty Act 2012, Regulations of Dhaka and Chitlagong Stock Exchange,

Bangladesh Labour Act 2006 (Amendment in 2013) and Bangladesh Labour Rules 2015, Financial Reporting Act

2015 and other applicable laws in Eangladesh. These indivdual financial statements present the llnancial position and

performance of i,4AHL and ils investment in Joint Ventures with multiple entities.

RIA

Page 3
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These financial statements have been prepared on going concem basis. unless otheMise specifcally mentioned,
historical cost principle has been followed for the purpose ofthe financial statements.

22 Structure, content and presentation of financial statements

Being the general purpose fnancial statements, the presentation of these financial statements is in accordance with
the guidelines provided by IAS 1: 'Presenlation of Financial Statements'. A complete s€t ol fnancial statements
clmprises:
i) Consolidated and Separate Statement of Financial Positionl

ii) Consolidated and Separate Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive lncome;
iii) Consolidated and Separate Statement of Changes in Equity,

iv) Consolidated and Separate Statement of Cash Flows,

v) Notes to the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, comprising a summary of significant acmunting
policies and other explanalory information to the financial statements.

23 Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiari03
The financial statements of subsidiary, Mir Securities Limited ('MSL') has been fulty consolidated as Mir Akhtaer
Hossain Limited ('i,,lAHL') directy controls more than 50o/o of the voting rights of MSL. The ac.counting policies of MSL

have been aligned with lhe policies adopted by MirAkhtar Hossain Limited.

(ii) Nonrontrolling inlerests

Non-controlling interest (NCl) is the equity interest in [,lSL not attributable to [4AHL. NCI is calculated at l\,1s1's

proportionate share of identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition as per para 19 of IFRS 3: Business
Conbinations . NCI is presented in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately kom the equity of the
shareholders of iilAHL as per paragraph 22 of IFRS 10r Corso/idated Frhancial Statements .

ln accordance with paragraph 894 of IFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements, the Group attributes the profit or
loss and each component of the other comprehensive income to the owners of the parent and lo the non-controlling
interests even ifthe results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.
(iii) Loss of control

When i,lAHL loses control over it's subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities ot the subsidiary and any
related NCI and other components of the equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in tlte profrt or loss. Any
interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

(iv) lntragroup tranlactions
lntra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra{roup
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from

transactjons with equity accounted investees are eliminated agaanst the investrnent to the extent of i/AHL's interest in

the investee. Unrealised losses, if any, are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairmenl.

2.3 lnvestment in Joint Venlures

ln addition to the Company's own construction business, the Company will form joint ventures with other

organizations to execute customer contracts. The investment rn these joint ventures are accounted for using the

equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in the joint ventures are initially recognis€d at cost. The

carrying amount of the investments are adjusted to recognise changes in the company's share of nel assets of the

loint venture since the acquisition date

Under the historical cost, assets are recorded at the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or lhe fair value of the
consideration given to acquire them at the time of acquisition. Liabilities are recorded at the amount of proceeds

received in exchange for the obligation, or in some circumstances (for example, income taxes), at the amounts ot
cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisry the liability in the normal course of business.

DHAKA
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2.4 Basis of measurement



2.5

to

Funclional and pr$entational curen6y

These fnancaal statements are prepared an Bangladeshi Taka (raka/BDT.), which is both the mmpan/s functional

and presentational cunency. All financial information has been rounded ofl to the nearest integer.

U3e of Btimat . and judgments

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity wath IFRS, requires management to make judgment, estimates

and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expense, asset and liabilities and the accompanying

disclosures including disclosures on contingent liabilities. Uncertainties about these assumptions and estimates could

result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumplions are revrewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

ln particular, informatjon about significant areas of assumptions, estimations and judgments in applying accounting

policies that have the most sjgnifcant effect on the amount recognised in the consolidated financial statements are

describ€d in the follotYing notes

Note - 2.2 Basis of consolidation

Note - 2.3 and 5 Basis for using Equity Method

Note - 2.7 Going Concem

Note - 3.2 IFRS 16: Leases

Note - 3.4.3 Depreciation and usefullife duration of assets

Note - 3.5 lmpairment of Assets

Note - 3.9.2 and '15 oefened tax asseuliability

Note - 3.9.1 and 24 Provision for corporate tax

Note - 3.13 and 35 Contjngent Liabilities

Measuenent of Fah Value

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable data as far as possible.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation

techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

27 Going concern

As per IAS-1 para 25, a company is required to make assessment at the end of each year to assess its capability to

continue as a going concem. These fnancial statements have been prepared on going concem basis. The company

has adequate resources to continue its op€ration for the foreseeable future. For this reason the directors continue to

adopt going concem basis in preparing the financial statements. The cunent resources and credit facilities of the

company are sutlicient to meet the present requirements of its existing business.

lmpact ol Covid-19 Pandemic

Similar to all other organizations, i/IAHL was also not immune to the impact of Covid-19 There were signifcant delays

in the completion of several on-going pOcets during the cunent year and prior year. As a result, there was a

significant reduction rn revenue recognized the Company for the year ended 30 June 2020 (which was the first year of

the pandemic). With the parlial improvement of the pandemic in the courtry and vaccination roll-outs, the overall

economy has started to recover. This impact can also be seen in the fnancial performance of the Company with 20olo

increase in revenue for the Company compared to the prior year. The Company has managemed to eam a positive

Op€rating Cash Flov{ which shows that the overall liquidity position of the Company is still sound. The Company is

always monitoring the market, industry partners and the overall economy for any potential future impact of this

o
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28 Statement of cash flort6

Statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with as per IAS 7: "Statement of cash flows' under direct
method as prescribed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange (8SEC) rule 1987. A reconciliation of Net

operating cashflow from operating activities under the indirect method has also been prepared in accordance with

Clause No. 5(2)(e) of Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/208iAdm|n/81 Dated 20th June, 2018 (Gazette

publication date; August 8, 2018).

Each material item as considered by management significant, has been presented separately in the fnancial

statements. The Company reports separately both assets and liabilities, and income and expenses unless required by

an applicable accounting standard or offsetting reflects substance of the transaction and such offsetting is permitted

by applicable accounting standard. No amount has been set off unless the Company has legal right to set off the

amounts and intends lo setlle on net basis

2.10 Reporling period

This financial period of the company covers one (1) year kom 01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021

211 Compliance with Financial Reporting standards as applicable in Bangladesh tor the Company

Ihe follolving IAS/IFRS are applicable for the prepamtions of financial statements for he period under revia,v

IAS 'l Presentation of finarEial statements

IAS 2 lnventories

IAS 7 Statement of cash fov{s

IAS 8 . Accornting policies, changes in accounting estimates and enors
IAS 10 Events after the repodng period

IAS 12 lncome taxes

IAS 16 Property, plant & Equipment

IAS 17 Leasos

IAS 19 Employee benefits

IAS 21 The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates

IAS 23 Bono,ving costs

IAS 24 Rslated pady disclosures

IAS 28 lnvestrnent in associates and Joint Ventures

IAS 33 Eamings per share

IAS 37 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

IFRS I Financial lnstruments

IFRS 7 Financial lnstrumenh, disclosures

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

IFRS 15 Rewnue from contracts with customers

IFRS 16 Leases

212 Accrual Basis

l\,lir AKhter Hossain Limited prepares its flnancial statements, except for cash flow information, using the accrual basis

of accounting. Since the accrual basis of accounting is used, the Company recognizes items as assets, liabilities,

equity, income and expenses (the elements ol financial statements) r,vhen they satisfy the definitions and recognition

criteria for those elements in the IFRS conceptual Framework.

213 Comparitivelnformation

Comparative infornation has been disclosed in respect of 01 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 in accordance with IAS 1:

Presentation of Financial Statements for all numenc information in the financial statements and also the nanative and

descriptive information where il is relevant for understanding of the cunent periods of financial statements.

DHAKA
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2.14 Cunent versus non{unrenl classification

215 Standards lssued blt not yet effective in Bangladesh

The ner{ and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet efiective, up to the date of issuance

of the Company's fnancial statements are disclosed below.

IFRS 17 lnsunnce Contnc//s
ln May 2017, the IASB issu€d IFRS 17 lnsurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive nerv accounting standard for
insurance mntracts cor,/ering recognation and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17 v{ill

replace IFRS 4 lnsurance Contracts (IFRS 4) lhat was issued in 2005 IFRS 17 is effective for repo(ing periods

beginning on or afrer 1 January 2023, with comparative figures required. This standard is not applicable to the

Company and will not be adopted.

IFRS 9 Finencial lnstu,reIl.b - Fees in he '10 p$ cenf lest for derccogntfion of liabilities
As part of its 20'18-2020 annual improvements to IFRS standards process the IAASB issued amendment to IFRS 9.

The amendment clarines the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified

financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only

those paid or received between the bonower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the bonower or
lender on the othe/s behalf. An entity applies the amendment lo llnancial laabilities that are modified or exchanged on

or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity lirst applies the amendment.

The amendment is efiective for annual reporting periods beginning on ot allet 1 January 2022with earlier adoption
permitled. The Companywill apply the amendments to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after

the beginning of the annual reporling period in which the entity frst applies the amendment. The amendments are not

erpected to have a material impact on the Company.

Definition of Accounting Estimales - Amendmerts fo ,AS 8

ln February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 8, in which it introduces a defnition of'accounting estimates'.

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies

and the conection of enors. Also, they clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop

accounting estimates.

The amendments are etlective for annual reporling periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to

changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.

Earlier application is permitted as long as this fact is dis€losed. The amendments are not expected to have a material

impact on the Company.

3. Significantaccountingpolicies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial

statements.

3.1 Shareholders' capital - paid-up capital

Paid-up capital represents the total amount of shareholde.s capital that has been paid in full by the ordinary

shareholders. Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time.

3.2 Lease transactions (IFRS 16)

Starting 1st July 2019, IFRS 16 has been adopted and all leasing anangements except those having less than 12

months of useful life and underlying asset values considered lor{ value when new, have been capitalized as'right to

use' assets with a coresponding financial liability on the balance sheet

DHAKA
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The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of linancial position based on cunenunon-cunent
classification. Assets and liabilities are classifed as cunent when they are expected to be realized, settled, sold or
consumed in a normal accounting cycle or within twelve months after the reporting period. Assets and liabilities that
are held primarily for fading are also considered cunent.



Leased assets arc capatalized from the start date of the lease agreement at the present value of []e luture leas€d
payments, based on the rate of interest entered in the asset master data. Low value and short term leases

(<12months)have been excluded from the recognition requirements and expensed in operating profit as rental costs.

Lease reassessment and lease modificalion to increase/decrease the value of an asset depending on a change in

scope of lease agreement can be made if necessary.

The asset is rr{ritten off on a straight-line basis over the tenure of the lease agreements. Hence, the useful life of any

lease assets depends on the number of periods the assets can be used. The useful life of such assets are dependent

on individual agreement and can vary from one agreement to anolher

For the Cunent Year, the Company entered into (or had already existing) two (2) lease agreements. These lease

agrerements rrere renta leases for the Company's two ofiice premises. For both of these leases, both the less€e and

lessor have the right to terminate the lease witlrout permission from the other party and also without any penalty being

imposed by tle other parly. Therefore in line with Parapraph 834 of IFRS '16, both of these leases are not considered

to be enforceable.

Since these agreements are not considered entorcable, they do not meet the definition of a contract under IFRS 16

and thus does not create a right-otuse Asset. Hence, irAHL has recognized the rent paid for their premises in line

with their previous practice under IAS 17 which is recognizing a rentalexpense in the statement of profrt or loss.

Since l\,lAHL's rental agreements did not meet the delinition of IFRS 16 right-otuse asset, there was no impact on the

financial statements due to the adoption of this accounting standard.

3.3 Employee benefitsr Provident Fund

ProYident Fund

[4AHL maintains a defined contribution plan (Employee Provident Fund) for its eligible permanent employees. The

eligibility is determined by according to the terms and conditions set forth in the trust deed and rules. The company

subscribes to a contributory provident fund for its permanent employees which is administered by a Board of

Trustees. As per IAS 19, an a defined contribution plan, the entity pays fixed contributions into a fund but has no legal

or constructive obligation to make further payments. obligations for contribution to defined contribution plans are

recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the period during which related seMces are rendered

by employees

Worters' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)

ln accordance with IAS 19, an entity shall recognize the expected cost of proflsharing and bonus payments if the

entity has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments and reliable measurement of the

obligation can be made. The company makes the provision of WPPF @ 5% of its net profit before tax after charging

such expense as WPPF in accordance with Bangladesh Labour Act 2006 as amended in 2013.

The Company does not have any policy to provide Defined Benelit Employement Benefits and therefore the Company

does not maintain a Gratuity Fund. Consequently there is no provision or gratuity expenses recognized by the

Company.

3.4 Property, plant and equipment

3 4.1 Recognition and meesurement

Prop€rty, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if

any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attnbutable to the acquisition of the assets, bringing the assets to the

location and condition necessary lor it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

DHAKA
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Property, plant and equipment (PPE) is recognised as an asset if it is probable that luture economic benefits

associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably
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3.4.3

The costs of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the
item if it is probable that the Iuture economic benefits embodied within the part will llow to the company and its costs
can be measured reliably. The costs of the day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in

the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as jncuned.

Deptecietion

Depreciation is recognised in lhe statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a reducing balance
method over the estimated useful lives of each item ol property, plant and equipment. Depreciation of an asset begins
when it is available for use, i.e. rrheo it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in

the manner intended by management. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is
classifed as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in accordance with IFRS 5

and the date that the asset is derecognised or sold. No depreciation is charged on leasehold land and capitalwork-in-
progress. Depreciation is calculated and charged on all other property, plant and equipment at the following rates on
cost or valuation, considering the estimated useful lives of the assets:

30-Jun-2'1 30-Jun'20
Land

Plant and machinery

Spa.e parts Ofice equipment

Fumiture fixtures and fittings

Shuttering Material

i,,lotor Vehicle

Gain or loss on sale of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement o{ pmfit or loss and other
comprehensive income as per provision of IAS '16: 'Property, plant and equipment"

Depreciation has been allocated to the different projects on lhe basis of uses of the assets

IVIAHL recognizes two kinds of spare parts: parts which are considered long{erm assets and parts which are

considered inventory. ln addition, there are some spare parts which are used over multiple years and they are used

on the field to service other capital equipment. These parts are used over multiple years, are of very high value and

are held for use in the production of goods or service. Since these items are large, high value and used over multiple
years, they meet the definition of properly, plant and equipment, as per paragraph 6 ol tAS 16 and thus are presented

as fixed assets and not inventory

3.4 4 Revaluation of Propefty Plent and Equipment

When using the revaluation model, as per IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment paragraph 31, after recognition as

an asset, an em of properly, plant and equipment whose fair value shall be measured reliably can be camed at a
revalued amount. lf PPE and revaluations shall be made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount

does not differ materially from that which would be determined using lairvalue at the end of the reporting period.

The company revalued its land by an independent professional firm namely Nurul Faruk Hasan & Co., Chartered

Accountants, creating a ravaluation surplus of Taka 11,08,65,857. The valuation repod has been prepared and

keated in accordance with lntemational Accounting Standards (lAS)and lntemational Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. The revaluation report was prepared based on the
financial position of June 30, 20'17.

The increase in the carrying amount of revalued assets is recognized in the separate component of equity under the

head ol revaluation surplus. However, the increase is recognized in profit or loss account to the extent that it reverses

a revaluation decrease of the same assets previously recognized in profit or loss account. There were no income

recognized for the cunent for any such reversals. Since the asset which was revalued (Land & Land Developments) is

not depreciated, there is no transfer ol revaluation surplus to equity done

lvo
15.000/0

10.000/0

10.00%

20.00%

20.00%

00/o

15.00%
't0.00%

't0.00%

20.00vo

20.000/0
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3.5 lmpairment

3.5.1 Recognition

The carrying value of the company's assets, other than inventories, are reviewed at each statement of financial

position date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. lf any such indication exists, the asset's

recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized whenever he canying amount of the asset or its

cash{enerating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. lmpairment losses, if any, are recognised in the statement of
prolit or loss and other comprehensive income. For the assets that have indelinite useful life, the recoverable amount

is estimated at each statement of fnancial position date.

No indication of impairmentwas observed in the period ended 30 June 2021.

3 5 2 Celculetion of recoverable amount

3.5.3 Reversel of impairment

An impairment loss recognised in pior periods for an asset shall be reversed if, and only if, there has been a change

in the estimates used to determine the assefs recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying

amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, had no impairment loss been

recognised for the asset in prior years.

There was no reversal of impairment in the period ended 30 June 2021

3.6 Capitalwork-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress represents the cost incuned for acquisition and/or construction of items of property, plant

and equipment that r,vere not ready for use at the year end and these are stated at cost.

3.7 Financiallnstruments

As per IFRS-7 'Financial lnstruments: Disclosure'all financial instruments are presented in a way so that users are

enabled to evaluate the significance of financial instruments for the Company and nature and extent of risks arising

from financial instruments to which the entity is exposed during the period and how the entity manages those risks.

inyesfmerts in frxed deposits

lnvestments in fixed deposits are shown in the fnancial statements at its cost and interest income is r6cognised as

they become due.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances and deposits with licensed fnancial institutions that are

readily convertible to knolvn amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Advances

Advances with no stated interest are measured at the original amount if the effect of discounting is immatedal

DHAKA
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The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of net selling price and value in use. The estimated future cash

flows are discounted to their present value usang discount rate that reflects the cunent market assessment ot the time

value of money and the risk specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate significantly independent cash

inflows, the recoverable amount is delermined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.



MAHL has adopted IFRS I for the cunent period as this standard has become efiective. ln previous periods, the

entity used IAS/BAS 39 to account for their financial instruments. The adoption of IFRS I did not have any impact on

the Company's fnancial statements as there were no changes in the Company's classifcation of the existing fnancial
instruments (all remained measured at cost). As per IFRS 9, a financial instrument is measured at cost if they are

held with a business model whose objective is hold assets and collect contractual cashfours and the contractual

terms give rise to cash flows on specilic dates which are only payments of principle and insterest on the outstanding
principle. These two criterias are met by all three instruments above.

3.8 Borrowing costs

As per requirement of IAS 23 Bonowing Costs, directly attributable bonowing costs are capitalised dudng

construction period for all qualifying assets. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial penod

of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. The bonowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,

construction or productjon of a qualifying asset are those bonowing costs that would have been avoided if the

expenditure on the qualifying asset had not been made. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in

the period in which they are incuned.

3.9 Taxalion

Ta( on the statement of comprehensive income for the year comprises curent and defened tar. lncome tax is

recognised in the statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly

in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

3.9.1 Current tax

Cunent tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively

enacted at the statement ot financial posation date, and any adjustment to tax payable in resp€ct of previous years.

392 Defe,Ied tex

Defened tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial

reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary dilferences are not provided

for: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor

taxable profit other than in a business combination, and dilferences relating to investrnents in subsidiaries to the

extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of defened tax provided is based on

the expected manner of reaiisation or settlement of the carrying amount of ass€ts and liabilities, using tax rates

enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Defened tax assets and llabilities are offset if there is a

legal enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same

tax authority on the same taxable entty.

A deferred ta( asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available

against \.r/hich the temporary difference can be utilised. Defened tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and

are reduced to the extent that is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

3.10

3.10.1

lnventories

Stocks

lnventones repres€nts construction material and supplies i.e., rod, cement, sand , stone, tiles, bricks, pipes, electtrical

goods etc. awaiting use in the production process. Therefore, the company complies with the principles of IAS-2'

lnventodes" and recognise inventories at cost using weighted average cost formula and measure the same at

reporting date at lower of cost and net realisable value.

310.2 Stores

and miscellaneous items are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
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Contract Asset: Work-in -process represents performance obligation completed by MAHL but for $rhich consideration
is not yet due (since the customer has not been billed). ln accordance with paragrapgh 107 of |FRS 15, this is

recorded as an asset. IFRS 15 allows a Company to use altemative description to represent ContGct Asset in the

statement of financial position (paragraph 109). Therefore contract asset is presented as 'Work in Progress' in the

statement of financial position.

l\,lAHL does not operate or use sales agenets who receive compensation in the form of commission from the

Company. Rather than agents, the Company has human resources engaged in business development. The

compensation of these employees are not directly related to aquisition of any single contracts but rather incured
peridocally in the form salary and wages. Therefore the Company does not record any contract assets in related to

customer contracts regarding costs incurred to obtain contracts which is in line r,vith IFRS 15 Paragraph 91.

Contract liabilities represent payments received for consideration not yet completed. The Company only bills their

clients for work completed after a suNey is completed by the Customer to confirm the stage of v{ork completion. The

Company only recognizes revenue afler this process if completed and only then will the Company bill their customers.

Consequently, no payment is ever recerved b€fore an obligation is completed and hence there is no Contract

Liabilities on the frnancial statements

3 11 Trade and other receivables

Contracts receivable represent the amounts billed on completed construction contracts . ln accordance with IFRS 15,

the receivable amount represents i/AHL's right to consideration that is unconditional. The consideration is

unconditional due to the fact that the service has been completed and the customer has been billeed for the services

provided. Contract receivable asset should b€ distinguished from Work in Process Mich represnts contracts assets

where i/AHL has completed therr performance obligation but payment is not yet due (since the customer has not

been billed yet). There are further details in Contract Asset: Work in progress is Note 3.10.3

3.12 Foreign curency transactions

The financial statements are presented in BDT which is company's functional cunency. Transactions in foreign

curencies are recorded in the books at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets

and liabilities in foreign cunencies at the date of statements of linancial position are translated into taka at the

exchange rate prevailing at that date.Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at

farr value in a foreign curency are translated using the exchange rate at the date when the fair value r,!as determined.

Exchange difterences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on fanslating monetary items at the end of the

reporting period are recognised in profit or loss a per IAS-21 the Efiects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.

3 13 Provisions, contingent liabiliti$ and contingent assels

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of llnancial position when lhe company has a legal or constructive

obligation as a result ol past events, and it is probable that an oumow of economic benefits ' ill be required to settle

the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contin ge n I liabi I ities

Contingent liabilities is a possible obligation that arises from the past events and whose existance will be mnfirmed

only by the occurance or non,occurance of more uncertain future events not wholly within the contml of the entity, or

a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because
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a) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligationl

or

b) the amount of the obligatjon cannot be measured reliably

ContirgenlAssets

A Contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from the past events and whose existance will be confirmed only by

the occurance or non-occurance of more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the statement of financial position of the Company. They are

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

3.14 Revenuerecognition

Under IFRS 15, rev€nue is measured under a 5 step process. The 5 step proces includes:

1. ldentification of contract

2. ldentification of performance obligation

3. oetermination of transaction price

4. Allocation of transaction pdce to performance obligation

5. Satisfactjon of performance obligation

Through a 5 step process, the Company identifies a contract with a customer and the contract details the

consideration amount that is to be received from the customer in retum for distinct perfomance obligations tirat is to

be p€rrormed by the Company. The per{ormance of these obligations are fullfiled through the transfer of goods and

seMces to the customer.

As |\4AHL operates in the construction business, fulfilment of their contracts involve providing goods and services of
vaned nature in a given contract. However the nature of these servces is such that they are not distinct individually

but rather cumulatively makes up one single distinct delivearble (since the customer cannot enjoy the benefits from

those goods or services on their own). Therfore the consideration to has been agreed in the contract is attributed to

the that one deliverable rather than allocating them to individual goods or services since they are not distinct from one

another

The peformance obligation related to [,lAl-]L's construction contracts are satasfed oveFtime. irAHL uses the output

melhod to determine the entit/s progress to{vards complete satisfaclion of a performance obligation over time. tulAHL

uses the output method because it provides a true and fat presentatron of the value to the customer of the goods and

services transferred to date relative to the remaining goods and services promised under the contract.

As described above, the Company adopted IFRS 15 using the full retrospective method. Adoption of IFRS 15 did not

lead to any changes in the revenue recorded in previous periods. Revenue was recognized in line with the Company's

progress of completion in prior years and the consideration to be received did not involve variable elements or

multiple performance obligations.

3.15 Contract Cost

Contract costs are costs lhat are incremental to obtaining a contract with a customer or costs that are directly related

to fulfiling a specified customer (Fulfilmen cost). Contract cost is capitalis€d as an asset and amodsed in a way that

is consistent with the transfer of the related goods and service.

3 16 lnlerest expenses

lnterest expense comprises interest expense on overdraft, import loan, demand loan, finance lease and term loan. All

interesl expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when it accrues.

lnterest expenses is allocated to the different projects and loint ventures on the basis of loan used.
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3.17 Earnings per share

Basic eamings pet sharc

The company presents basic eamings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the companyby the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding at the year end as per IAS-33 " eamings per share'.

Dihrted eamings per share

No diluted eamings per share are required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution during the
year under review.

318 Related party transaclion

Parties are considered to be related if one of the party has the ability to control the other party or execise significant
infuence over the party in making linancial and operating decisions. The company canied out transactions in the
ordinary course of business on an arms length basis at commercial rates with its related parties.

3.19 Events after the reporting date

Events after he reporting date that provide additional inlormation about the compan/s position at lhe reporting date
are refected in the financial statements. Events afler the reporting date that are not adjusting events are disclosed in

the notes when material.

320 General

Previous yeals numerical information, nanatives and descriptive information in the financial statements and

accompanying notes have been disclosed and reananged/reclassified wherever considered necessary to conform to

curent yea/s presentation.
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As at

30 JUI{E 2020

5. lnvestment in Joint Venture

This amount represents the company's lnvestment in the project
with foreign collaboration

Name of the Joint Venture

HALLA-I\.lAH.SEOKWANG JV

Samwhan-[,1ir Akhter JV

Mir Akhter-Komaihaltec JV

Mir Akhter-W[.4CG JV

HEGMiT Akhter JV

Halla-Mir Akhler JV

[4ir Akhter-CA[4CE JV
CRCC.I\,4AHL JV

1 929,s20 10,315,894,731

10,103,9a,520 10.3.15,894.731

I'lature of Business

Construction

Consfuction

Construction

Construction

Construction

Construction

Construction

Construction

796,016.542

3,004,590,686

429,336,740

871,928,159

1,047,597,383

2,993,132.828

115,862328

545,464,854

859,971,559

3,235,381,400

1,484,985,595

924,137,U7

1,055,626,581

2,7ss ,792,249

---14L9?190 10,315,894,731

HALLA.MAH.SEOKWANG:

Three entities viz; Halla corporatjon, Korea, l\.'lir Akhter Hossain Ltd., Bangladesh and seokwang Development co. Ltd.
fomed a Joint Venture ljnderlaking eartnership at will) based on a contract to perform the construction wort of Cox's Bazar
Airport under the CivilAviation Authority of Bangladesh.

Samwhan-Mir Akhter JVI

Two entities vizi Samwhan Corporation and Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd., Bangladesh formed a Joint Venture Undertaking
(Partnership at will) based on a contract for improvement of road from Dulla lr.4ari road to Tangail (22.4 Km.) from 2-Lane to 4-
lane including structures and performance based maintenance r,vorks on improved 4-lane road from Oulla Mari Road to
Tangail (22.4 Km ) and Construction of 6 (Six) Nos (G-'14) Stoned Residential Building ('1OO Sft. Each unit) including civit,
lntemal & extemal sanitary & water supply and electrical works, suppoly & lnstallation of lift, Generator, electric substation
and lire fighting system etc in Block-A of Dhaka Etevated Express way (DEE) prqect.

Mir Akhter-Komaihaltec JV:

Two entities viz; Komaihaltec Ltd. and Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. formed a Joint Venture Ljnde(aking (Partnership at rr/ill) based
on a contract No. PW-02 for Constructjon of 16(Sixteen) Nos. Bridge at Rajshahi Zone of Westem Bangladesh Bridge
improvement prqect.

Mir Akhter.WMCG JV

Traro entities viz; Mir Akhter Hossain ltd. And wuhan l\4unicipat construction Group (WMCG) formed a Joint venture
undertaking (Partnership at will) based on a contract for the construction of 7.35 km road from Rajghat to [rohoriguna in
Moheshkhali upazilla of Coxsbazar.
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Hego.Mir Akhter JV

T$ro entities viz; Henan Highway Engineering Group Co. Ltd., Republic of China and Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. formed a Joint
Venture Undertaking (Partnership at will) based on a contract for part-1r lmprovement of road from west side of
Bangabandhu Bridge to Hatikumrul intersection (19.80 km) to a 4-Lane highway alongwith slow moving vehicular traflic
(S[,1VT) lane on both sides & structures and pa(-2: performance based maintaince works on improved 4]ane highway from

$rest side of Bangabandhu Bridge to Hatikumrul inters€ction (19.80 km)toa4-Lane highway alongwith slow moving
vehicular traflic (SMyD Iane on both sides & structures under the SASEC road connectivity prqeclll: lmprovement of
Elenga-Hatikumrul-Rangpur road to a 4-lane highway, ICB No.. SASEC-IUlCB/MP-1MP 06 (LOT 2).

Halla-Mir Akhter JV

Two entities Mz; HALLA Corporation , Republic of Korea and Mar Akhter Hossain Ltd., Bangladesh formed a Joint Venture
Undertaking (Partnership at will) based on a conkact for rehabilitation of road from Badar*hali naval police station to
Yunuskhali (Ch. 30+ 339 to Ch. 36+123) including new 680 m kohelia bridge, strengthening of existing runway and taxiway at
OSMANI INTERNATIOANL AIRPORT , SYLHET and construction of 595m long PC box grider bridge box over Bakkhali river

at Kustun Ghat under sadar upazila of Cox'sbazar Distnct.

CRCC.MAHL JV

Two entities vaz; Mir Akhter Hossain ltd. And China Railway Construction Bridge Engineering Eureau Group Co. Ltd. formed

a Joint Venture undertaking (Partnership atwill) based on a contract for the construction of Construction of Broad Gauge Rail

Line kom Madhukhali to l\,lagura Via Kamarkhali.

Two entities viz, Mir Akhter Hossain ltd. And China CAMC Engineering Co. Ltd. formed a Joint Venture undertaking
(Partnership at will) based on a contract for the Strengthening of Existing Runway and Ta(iway at Shah Amanat lntemational

Airport, Chittagang.

Legal Status of all Joint Vent!res

The legal status of the joint venture is a Pa(nership at will because it was created only to carry out a particular construction
prqects as per contract, but in accordance with the provision of Section - 2 (20) BB of lncome Tax Ordinance 1984 its status

is a Company though it does not have any consequential effect under this ordinance

6, lnvestment in Proiects

Balance as at 01 July

Add Addition during the year

527,926,105

39,900,000

567,E26,105 576,288,797

(48,362,692)

527,926,105

As at
30 JUNE 2O2()

DHAKA

oo,*
R A

o

cKctN21.22n

Less: Refund during the year

Balance as at 30 June

Page 2!

567,826,105

Mir Aklrter Nossarn Lm ed

As at

30 JUNE 202'l

MIR AKHTER.CAMCE JV

576,288 797



7. Security Deposits (Retention Money)

Prepayments

VAT refund:

0pening

Addr Additions during the year

Less Refund during the year:

8. Advance & Prepayments

Advances to employees against salary

Advances to suppliels

9. Advance income tax

Balance as at 01 July

AIT on lmporl

AIT on Contract revenue

AIT on lP0 & STD accounts

AIT on the registration of Car and Vehicle

_i!M!l!!_ _______zE&9.qil

713,959,073

149,673,865

(76,534,700)

18,970,330

743,670,554

115,923.418

(145,634,899)

40,744,8

121 ,77 4 ,218)

_-___19,919,339_ ________!Eg&0

______!90,0_!!&8 ____l!f4Jq!_

2,226,787

938 415,189

2,855,630

949,033,874

910,611,976 951,889,504

____jqJzq,47 ___l!1,gE!9{

48,806,217

41,930,415

122,020,389

1,204,U3

2,786,500

216,748,364

(168,613,886)

940,641,976

30,000,000

(271,669)

1,740,101,845

1,995,339,200

517,370,329

951,889,s04

1 ,557 132376
1,832,486,556

136,32s,2s3

Less: Provision for tax

Balance as at 30 June

lnventories

Stocks

10.

Work-in-process

Ra$, materials (Note,l3.1 )

Goods-in-transit

tuat
3ll JUitE 202't

As at
30JU E 2020

48,134,478

26,096,435

186,201,958

1,638,216

7,159,242

269,830,329
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Security Depo3its

Balance as at 01 July

Addr Security deposits retained by the employer

Less: Refund during the period

Balance as at 30 June

8A. Consolidated Advance & Prepayments
Advance & Prepayments - l\.4AHL

Advance & Prepayments - L.1SL

Less. lntercompany Elimination

_______l9J4f9L _______l!J31428

____J@filfi!_ _____3JZ!J44.q!5



10.1 Details break.down of Ray{ materials:

Cement

M.S.Rod

Stone ChipVBoulder

Sand

Bricks

Sanitary Material

Wood & Plastic Door

Tiles

PVC pipe,RCC pipe & S.S.Pipe

Bitumen

Chemical

Hardware Material

Electrical [,taterial

GP Sheet

Holo Block

ThaiAluminium

Others

Tolal

Cash in hand (Note- 11.3)

Calh at banks

Cash at bank ( Nots11.1)

Cheque in hand ( Note-l1.2)

11.1 Cash at bank

Cash at bank I,IAHL

Cash at bank lPo account (8DT account)

Cash at bank IPO account (USo converted to BDT)

1'1.2 Cheque in hand

Proj€ct Name

Rajshahi New Road(RNR)
Reliance lnsu.ance Limited

Nator Baghatipara Bridge, NBB

Patenga Container Terminal-Ground lmprovemen!(PCT

Residentjal l\rodel Town (3rd Phase) Rajuk ohaka

RHo Sylhet Road Prqect, SRP

Dhaka Airport (DAP)

Chitagang Development Authority, BAKAL lA

Kanchpur Meghna Gumti Bridge, (oSJl JV)

Jamuna River Dredging Works, JRDW

Munshiganj 8ndge, MSBP

1,s40,250,163 443,402,311

____l!!f!t !9L ______iz!,91!J4

221,541 ,230

239,233,520

451,247 ,800
482,714,570

5,833,690

3,821,200

566,910

328.180

3,823,690

45.521,450

6,322,590

1,477,820

8,962,s40

5,922,360

477,850

655,240

516,888,560

210,007,899

212,696,819

403,463,499

433,374,149

61,245,780

4,123,580

678,900

212,U0

3,640,800

54,'t25,730

8,823,690

16,823,470

9,817,460

8,715,400

1,645,210

879,250

402,212,580

1,995,339,200 '1,832,486,556

Due to large volume number of items ofstocks, it is difiicult to quantry each items in a separate and distinct category

Therefore, it is grouped under fie suitable head.

11. Cash and cash equivalents

14,430,642

1,170,208,269

370,041,894

33,513,150

105,405,975

337,996,396

401,869,703

767,713,712

624,854

105,405,975

1,170,208,269

159,341,3't2

37,779,354

32,774,867

61,749,164

78,397,197

41,196,320

5,920,373

41,887,991

13,050,100

25,534,151

11,819,723

59,965,275

138,622,463

______lrJ9qJ9!_

Asa
30 JUNE 2021
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11.3 Cash in hand

Prorecl

Head ofice
RAJUK, Uttara Dev. Project, DHAKA

Uttara Residential Apartment Project

OSJi JOINT VENTURE

Reliance lnsurance Limited

Chittagang Development Autho0, BAKALIA

Matarbari Power Plant

RH0, Shylhet Road Project(SRP)

Dredging Work Madaripur, DWM

Nator Baghatipara Bridge, NBB

Jamuna River Dredging Works, JRDW

Munshiganj Bridge, MSBP

Kushtia Shilpakala Academy (KSA)

ohaka Airpon (DAP)

Bangabandhu Bridge,RHD (BBTL)

Dawlatdia Basanhpur Road, RHD (DBR)

11A Consolidated Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank irAHL ( Note11.1)

Cheque in hand (Note-11.2)

Cash in hand (Note- 11.3)

Cash at bank - MSL

14,430,612 33,513,150

1,170,208,269

370,04'1,894

14,430,642

39,899,595

105,405,975

337,996,396

33,513,150

1,594,580,100 476,915,521

1,468,103

623,540

578,410

859,632

2,655,820

3,655,120

825,630

53'1,470

2.92A 417

312,s00

1,356,200

1,535,420

1,012,500

1,478,600

185,680

184,000

3,955,400

1,457,900

2,783,290

2,520,100

8,644,200

3,720,360

4,679,500

DHAKA
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Authorised

200,000,000 Ordinary shares of Tk '10 each

lssued, subscribed and paid-up

12A.771,547 Otdinary shares of Tk 10 each

Shareholding position of the company

Sponsors/Directors

lnstitutions

General Public

30.06.2021

s86,670,000

47,106,540

573,938,930

30-06-2020

586 670,000

Nominalvalue fiaka)

_____3,!!!,!!9J!0 ____?,9!9,!!!,!!0

1,207,7',ts,470 000 000 000

__-_lp_Jlt/i!_ 1,000,000,000

Percentage of holding (%)

30-06-2021 30-06.2020

48.58% 58 67%

3.90% 0.00%

47.52"/0 41.33%

110,865,857

(3,325,976)

110,865,857

,325,976

107,539,88'l '0/ 539 88'

1,201,715,410

413 330,000

1,000,000,000 '!00.00%

'13. RevaluationReserve

Revaluation reserve

Less: Defened tax liabilities on revaluation reserve

'14. Retained earnings

Balance as at 01 July

Proft transfened Irom statement of comprehensive income

Transfened fom joint venture business

Balance as at 30 June

14.A ConsolidaledRetainedearnings

Balance as at 01 July

Profit transfened from l\,lAHL Business ([,lAHL)

Less: Loss in MSL attributed to MAHL

Transfened from joint venture business

Balance as at 30 June

14.8 Non-Contolling lntrest in MSL

Balance as at 01 July

NCI Portion of [4SL Common Share Equity

NCI Portion of MSL loss for the year

____l&qfl!,!z9-

2,738,465,717

101,968,462

367,8&t,649

2,738,465,717

101,968,462

(10,380,558)

91,587.905

367,884,649

2,363,458,720

74,968,295

300,038,702

2.363,458,720

74,968,295

300,038,702

____!9i&gl]L 2,138,465,717

200.000

(26,016)

DHAKA
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As at

30 JUNE 2021

As at

30 JUI{E 20m

12. Share capital

____l_q!.!!%

On 26 January 2021, the Company raised total proceeds of B0T 1,250,000,000 through lnitial Public offenng (lPo).overall

the Company issued 20,771,547 shares with nominal value of BDT 10.00 per share. The Company recognized an increase in

Share Capital of BDT 207,715,470 and share premium of BDT 1,042,284,530.

2.738.465.717



'15 Deffered tax liabilities

The company has recognised deffered tax liabilities on revaluation surplus complying wilh the lntematlonal Accounting

Standard (lAS-12).

There are no other sources of deductible/taxable temporary differences for MAHL. Historically, the Company's depreciation
exp€nse for accounting purposes have been in line with depreciation expense recorded for tax purposes leading to no

temporary differences. MAHL'S joint ventures which are recorded using the equity method also does not lead to any
taxable/deductible temporary difference since the Joint Ventures are taxed as a separate entity. All distribution of profts paad

to MAHL are done on an after-tax basis and therefore there is no instance where a temporary difference can arise

Revaluation surplus

Tax rate, as per S€cl,bn 53H ol the lncone Tax Odinance 19W rcd with

Rule 17ll

Defferd tax liabilites

Social lslami Bank Ltd.

Shahjalal lslami Bank Ltd.

Dhaka Bank Ltd.

United Commercial Bank Limited

Jamuna Bank Limited

Uttara Bank Limited

BRAC Bank Limited

Pubali Bank Limited

Standard Bank Limited

Al-Arafah lslami Bank Ltd.

Midland Bank Ltd.

Modhumoti Bank Ltd.

Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.

NRB Commercid Bank Ltd.

Dutch Bangla Bank Limited

Less: Shorl term Loan

Long term loan

'110,865,857

3%

1'10,865,857

30/"

__-_-_lJitpls

16. Loan from Financial lnstitutions

1,501,630,959

2,024,448,656

1,783,006,413

2,125,424 ,679
1,476,498,356

503,751,240

631,055,279

7,453,159

1 ,277 ,437 ,585
740,395,869

338,135,494

869,157,899

1,303,714.975

589,490,649

910,979,893
'16,082,58't,'104

{2,612,089,755)

16.1 Social lslami Bank Ltd,

This represents lhe amount outstanding against term loans taken from The Social lslami Eank Limited on various dates for

executing the prolects and improtjng the equipments and others. Thes€ loans are repayable rxith interest at the range of
7.00%-9.00% p a.

16,2 Shahjalal lslami Bank Ltd.

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from The Shahjalal lslami Bank Limited on various dates

for executing he prqects and importing the equipments and olhers. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of

7.00%-9.00% p.a.

1,5'10,777,691

1 ,581 ,546,494

1,926,868,864

2,276,685,362

665,740,893

627,218,368

805,606,087

931,984,568

1,204,325,190

368,700,492

719,819,347

1,58'1,827,928

941,630,556

1,862,100,300

17,004,832,140

(4,873,168,063)

DHAKA
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3,325,976

12,131,36,1,077 13,470,491,349



As at

30 JUNE 2020

16.3 Dhaka Eank Ltd

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from The Dhaka Bank Limited on vanous dates for
executing the projects and imporling lhe equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of
7.00%-9.00% p.a.

'16.4 United Commercial Bank Limited

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken hom The United Commercial Bank Limited on various

dates for executing the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the

range of 7.00o/o-9.00% p.a.

16.5 Jamuna Bank Limited

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Jamuna Bank Limited on various dates for executing

the prolects and importing the equipments and others. These loans ar€ repayable with interest at the range of 7.00%-

9.00%p.a.

15.5 Utlara Bank Limiled

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Uttara Bank Limited on various dates lor executing

the prqects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable urith interest at 7.00%-9.00% p.a.

16.7 BRAC Bank Limited

This represents he amount outstanding against term loans taken from BRAC Bank Limited on various dates for executing

the poects and importing fle equipments and othec. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of 7.00%-9.00%

p.a.

16.8 Pubali Bank Limited

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken tuom Pubali Bank Limitsd on various dates for executing

the poects and impo ng the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of 7.00%-9.00%

p.a.

16.9 Standard Bank Limited

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Standard Bank Limited on various dates for executing

the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of 7.000/0-9.00%

p.a.

16.'10 Al-Arafah lslami Bank Limited

This represents the amount outstanding against tem loans taken from Al-Arafah lslami Bank Limited on various dates for

erecuting the projects and imporling the equipments and others. Thes€ loans are repayable with interest at the range of
7.00%-9.00% p.a.

DHAKA
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&at
30 JUt{E 2021

As at
30 JUNE 2O2O

16.11 Midland Bank Ltd.

This represents lhe amount outstanding against term loans taken from Midland Bank Ltd. on various dates for executing the
prqects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of 7.00%-g.O0o/o p.a.

16.12 Shimanto Eank Ltd.

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Shimanto Bank Ltd. on various dates for executing the
pOects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of 7.00%-9.00% p.a.

15.13 Modhumoti Eank Ltd

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Modhumoti Eank Ltd. on various dates for executing
the prqects and impo(ing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of 7 00%-9.0oto
p.a.

16.'14 MutualTrust Bank Ltd.

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Mutual Trust Eank Ltd. on various dates for executing
th€ prqects and importing he equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at he range of 7.OO%-9.00%
p.a.

',6.15 tlRB Commercial Bank Ltd.

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from NRB Commercial Bank Ltd. on various dates for
executing the proiects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of
7.00%-9.00% p.a.

16.16 Dutch Bargla Bank Ltd

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. on various dates for
executing the proiects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of
7.00%-9.00% p.a.

16.17 Security

(a) Personal guaBntee of all the Directors including Managing Director of the company.
(b) Existing charge on immoveable pmperty, moveable pmperty, book debts and floating assets (present and future) of the
company duly registered with RJSC&F.

(c) Mode wise post dated MICR cheques for each limit separately in favor of the bank to be obtained through an undertaking
to the efiect that these have been provided by you for repayment pumose.

(d) Fresh usual charge documents (mode urise) duly stamped and filled in.

DHAKA
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As at
30 JUitE 2021

11. Deferred LC

18. Liabilities for expenses

Salary & Allowances

Audit fees

Legal Fees

oirecto/s Remuneration

Telephone & Fax Bill

Electrical Bill

Repair & Maintenance (Machinery)

Repair & Maintenance (CAR)

Repair & Maintenance (Equipment)

oflice Rent

GAS & WASA BIII

Payable to Suppliers

Stationery

Newspaper & Postage

off ce Maintenance Charges

Fuol & Lubricant

PF Contribution

Contribution to WPPF

18A. Consolidated Liabilities for expenses

13,345,900

350,000

140,000

560,000

12,380
'101,600

65,700

63,000
'16,320

1,835,177

37,200

10,065,713

15,200

1,040

27.1W
1s,120

310,200

28,280,414

55,242,154

306,169
(271,669)

28,184,180

3s0,000

100,000

160,000

42,690

63,057

103,000

90,100

17,530

1,835,178

39,220

15,000,000

14,860

4,050

26,790

130,s00

252,033

92,299,258

138,712,446

_____5520 lsA ____jn 7! ur

SL Item Name BDT Value
1 Stone 36,443,550
2 Motor Grader 6,796,000
3 Stone 3,277,711
4 Stone 2,823J60
5 Stone 1,771,208
6 Stone 3.298,693
7 Lab Equipment 1,468,600
8 Slone 2,360,153
9 lrotor Grader Parts 2,913,700
10 Stone 887,235
11 Stone 2,815,787
12 Stone 3,313,050
13 Woven Geotextile 8,634,573
14 Geogrid 3,287,565
15 Stone 3,311,504
to Bentonrte powder 2,534,483
17 Stone 3,313,050
18 Stone 3.297,2s8
19 Slone 2,775,529
2A Stone 3,299,503
21 Stone 3,305,651

Total 101,927,962

DHAKA
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Liabilities for expenses - irAHL
Liabilities for expenses - MSL

Less: lntercompany Elimination
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For the year snded

30 JUNE 202't

For the year ended

30 JUNE 2(}2()

19. Revenue

*
1

2
?

4

5

6

7

8

I
10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Total

333,788,187

20,818,400

35,301,493

3,tu,2g
68,126,465

1,047,095,692

188,299,985

242,060,753

4,887,025

1s,819,090

20,092,949

78,181,000

63,533,136

237,882,095

14,891,467

132,160,002

188,237,708

Projecl Name (oaaiu ofRlvenue i! shof,n in Ann.lul!- 1)

RHD Sylhet Road Prqect(SRP)

Chevron Bangladesh (BD)Block Twelve Ltd.

Kushtia Shilpakala Academy (KSA)

Maizkandi-Boalmari Gopalganj Road(MBG)

[.4atarbari Po',ver Plant(MPP)

Kanchpur Bridge.Narayongong (K[.4G)/oSJl

Patengha Container Terminal Ground lmprovement (PCT)

Rajshahi Neu, Road(RNR)

Uttera Construction Buildang Pmject(UTTARA)

Residential l\.,!odel Town (3rd Phase) Rajuk Dhaka

Nator Baghatipara Bridge, NBB

Chitagang Development Authority,BAKALlA

Relaince lnsurance Ltd.

Dawlatdia Basantapur Road,RHD (DBR)

Dredging Work Madaripur, DWM

Bangabandhu Bridge,RHD (BBTL)

Dhaka AiQort (oAP)

LGED, Gopalganj, BAPAR0 (Kotalipara)

Multarpur Bridge, AMBP

Jamuna River Dredging Worts, JRDW

Jamuna Rail Bridge Project, JRBP

i/tunshiganj Bridge, i.4SBP

Revenue

20. Cost of ereculion ol the contract

Opening stock of construction material

Development and materialexpense (Note 23.1)

Cost of construction material available during the period

Closing stock of construction material

Cost ol mnstrution material consumed during the period

Dircct expenses (Note 23.2)

Total cost of construction in pr@ess

opening Work in Process

Closing Wort in Process

Total Cosl of execution of the contraci

Earth filling and development work

l\.laterial cosl

Less: Vat Refundable

Total Development and material erpenses

1,057,260,7'12

75,109,472

52,608,262

165,267,024

311,907,9 t8

241,277,132

163,615

65,564,000

135.82't,135

1,245J26
141,628,399

359,525,326

u,u6,421
89,821.505

337,821,160

48,182,487

95,026,905

3,212,277,000 2,694,959,701

1,832,486,556

1 ,7 l',t ,977 ,572
3,54,1f,1,128

1,995,339,200
'1,549,124,928

940,399,898

2,189,521,827
'1,557,132,876

1 ,740, 1 01 ,845

1,635,458,010

1,951,084,708

3,586,5/12,718

1,832,486,556

1,751,056,162

890,605,172

2,644,661,334

u1,254 200

1,557,132,876

2,306,555,858 't,928,782,658

3,852,400

1,708j25,112
64,821,s60

1,886,263,148
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For the year ended

30 JUNE 2021

Project Expenses

Caniage lnward

Fuel and Lubricant

Bank charge/Olhers charge by the Empoyer

Salary & Wages

vAT (Note-23.2 1)

Depreciation (Nole-o4)

Total Direc-l Erpenses

1,744,820

826,320

93,675,719

5,138,739

420,428,480

251,756112

166,829,408

1,812,560

1,236,980

88,766,520

9,951,936

4M,121,820

212,876,745

171,832,611

940,399,898

178,196,533

73,559,879

99 426,960

113,449,785

251,756.412 212,876,7 45

'142,485,915

92,000

9,240,000

8,720
182,400

369,230

21,848,579

478,350

148,570

389,230

28,110

1,672,6@

789,254

756,2m

12,480

1,219,466

218,150

255,680

55,470

212,5W

3,614,118

141,200

71,4N

u8,570
433,690

220JN
446,463

326,320

350,000

1,680,000

103,252,763

1,680,000

145,200

178,320

482,100

21,772,358

465,200

320,550

512,300

32,150

1,565,480

1,236,930

1,080,710

48,570

756,685

268,500

488,790

78,950

155,400

6,235,000

126,500

65,230

302,380

492,500

210,420

475,880

321,470

700,000

1,200,000

Staff Salary & Allowance

Board Meeting Fee

Directors Remuneraton

Advertisement

Prinling & Stalionery

Tender, PrcqualificationiEnlistment

Office Renl

Fees & Chgarges

Traveling & Tour

Telephone & Fax Charge

Postage & Telegram

Fuel & Lubricant

Repair & lvaintenance (Machinery)

Repair & [.4aintenance (CAR)

Newspaper & Periodicals

Electrical Charge

Conveyance

Entertainment

Uniform & Liveries

Security Services

lnsurance & Premium

Donation & Subscription/Zakat

Business Promotion

Head Office mainteance

lvedical expenses

Repair & Nlaintenance (Equipment)

GAS & WASA B|II

Site Oflice Maintenance

Audit fee

Legal Fee

Total General and adminbtration expenses 144,650,336
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188,054,895
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For t le year ended

30 JUNE 2O2O

20,2 Direct expenses

20.2.1. vAT
VAT Deducted from Construction Eusiness

VAT Deducled from lmporl Stage

Total VAT

21. Generalandadministrationexpenses

____-!9q,!9il_22



For the year ended

30 JUNE 202'l

214. Consolidated General and administration expenses

General & administration expense' [,4AHL

General & adminislration expense - [/SL
Total Consolidated Genenl and administration expenses

22. Non-operatingincome

lnteresl lncome (STD Bank lnterest)

lnteresl lncome (lPO Bank lnterest)

FDR lnterest Income

23. Financial expenses

lnteresl Expense

Foreign Exchange (gain)/loss ' Realized

Foreign Exchange (gain)/loss - Unrealized

Bank Charges

Less lnterest charged to Joint Venture Pa(ners:

A) HALLA. I\,'IAH . SEOKWANG JOINT VENTURE

b) SAI\,!WHAN.i/IR AKHTER JOINT VENTURE

c) MIR AKHTER-KOiTIAIHALTEC iV
d) lvrr Akhter-WIVCG JV

e) Hego-lvir Akhter JV

0 Halla-Mir Akhter JV

g) cRcc-MAHL JV

h) MIRAKHTER.CAMCE JV

Financial expenses charged

24. lncome tax expense

Cunent tax (note-25.1)

Defened tax (note 25.2)

24.1 Current tax

1) Construclion business income (as per 82C income)

2) lnterest incorire on FDR

3) lnterest ncome on STD acclunt
4) lnterest ncome on IPO account

5) Excess taxes relaled lo vehicle regislralion

Total cunent tar expense

Net Profit before tax

lncome Tax Rate - 22.5% [A]
lncome Tax deducted at Source [8]
Minimum tax U/S 82C of lT Ordinance 1984 - 0 6% of Revenue ICI

lflmme Tax Provision for the year: Higher of [A, I & C]

188,054,895

10,406,574

144 650 336

153,953

16,228,213

74,012

13,254.367

16,382,166 13,328,379

1 ,476,762,418

431,904

102,970

756,488

1,316,659,987

7,832,838

(y4,434)

855,361

r,478,053,78'l 1,325,003,752

16,325,189

271,269j95
10,428,677

1 1 5,'t09,1 01

98,663,782

392,120,371

81,432,994

66,783,461

396,136,744

75,676,036

45,082,906

28,976,846

400,037,425

t,052, t32,770 945,909,957

425,921,011 _______r9,!9u9l

220,057,635

220,057,635

168,613,886

168 613 886

212,898,393

34,639

3,651,348

3,473,255

163,950,804

4,639,028

24,054

220,057,635

The cuffent tax expense is calculated as per Section 82C of the lncome Tax Ordinance 1984 which described the minimum tax to

be paid by lhe Company. Therefore no further effective tax rate reconciliation is necessary.

As per Paragraph 81(C) of IAS 12 lncome Taxes an explanation of the relationship between lax expense (inmme) and accounting
profil is provided below:

322,026,097

72,455,872

212,898,393

19,453,662

243,582,182

79,164,209

163,950,804

16,249,728

153,950,804
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There were no temporary differences belween catrying amount of assets and liabilites for linancial reporting purposes and the

amounls used tor taxation purposes. Therefore the mmpany did not reclrd any defenef tax liabilties or assets apart from the

revluation reserve thal is described in Note no-17.

Details ofthe carrying value of lixed assets (both lax and accounting value) are provided below:

166 829,408

166,829,408

171,832,611

171,832,611

124,520JgA

16,164,399

16,98'1,161

3,614,158

138,758,794

Depreciation for tax (as per 3rd Schedule

oepreclation as per Accouling

Temporary difference:

HALLA.MAH.SEOKWANG JV

Samwhan'l\,4ir Akhler JV

l!!ir AkhlerKomaihaltec JV

Mir AkhterWMCG JV

Hego-Mir Akhter JV

Halla-lllir Akhter JV

lVir AkhterCAlVCE JV

CRCC-l\ilAHL JV

Price SensitiYe lnformation:

Eamings Per Share:

Net profit for the year

Number of shares

Basic eamings per share (EPS)

Since there is no temporary difference between the depreciation charged for tax and accounting purposes, lhere is no taxable

temporary difference in the carrying value of lhe fixed assels for tax and accounting purposes There ls one source ol temporary

difference which is caused by the revaluation of land yr,hich has already been recognized by the Company (BDT 3,325,976). Since

there is no change in ihe value of land (bolh tax and acmunting), lhere is defened tax expense recognized lor land in lhe curent
yeat

25. Profit after tax from Joint Venture

Name of the Joint Venture

7,878,748,952 357,884,649 300,038,702

26.1

469,853,111

109,231,799

375,006,997
'109,231,799

4.30 3.43

Wei hted e Number of shares outstandin

109,231,799

'The EPS of the previous coresponding peiod has been recalculated with the c!nent tolal number of shares after considering
issuance of new sharcs

Diluted eamings per share :

No diluted EPS ls calculated for the period as there was no scope for dilution during this period.

For the year ended

30 JUNE 2021

101 ,354,215

1,823,000,488

763,715,026

808,634,829

671,786,863

2,766,381,517

397 544,014

540,332,000

3,486,473

113,882,829

5,635,225

46,568,319

35,281,127

134,008,865

8,503,616

20,518,195

Opening Ba ance 100,000,000 350 100,000,000

lssuance of new shares 20,771 ,547 150 9,231,798.67

Weighted averaqe

number ol Shares
Padiculars No. of shares

DHAKA
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24.2 Deferred tax

25.

_____jnlLa4l

Share of IIAHL in
JYs profit

30 June 2020

Revenue

Share ot iIAHL in
JVs proltt

30 June 2021

Days



For tlre year snded

30 JUNE 2020

26.1A Consolidated Eamings Per Share

26.2 Net Assets Value per Share

Net Assets (with revalualion)

Number oi shares

Net Asset value per share {NAVPS)

Net Assets (w hout revaluation)

Numberof shares

Net Asset value per share (I{AVPS)

26.2A Consolidated Nel Assets Value per Share

Net Assets (w(h revalualion)

Numbef of shares

Consplidated {et Asset value perEhare (NAVPS)

Net As,sets (without revaluatron)

Number of shares

Consolidated Net Asset value per share (NAVPS)

26.3 Net Operating Cashflov{ per share

Nel Op€ratlrq Cashflow

Number of sl1?res

Net Operating Cashflow per share (NOCFPS)

26.3A Consolidated Net Operating Cashflow per share

Net operating Cashflow

Number of shares

Conlolidated t{et Operating Cashflow per share (NOCFPS)

26.4 Reconciliation of net operating cash flow

Net profit before tax
Adjustment for: Profit afler tax lrom Joint venture

lnleresl expenses

lncome lax paid

Depreciation

lnventones

Securily Deposits

Advances and prepayments

oeferred LC

Liabilities for expenses

Changes in:

5,565,858.710

109,231,799

3 846,005,599

109 231,79S

459,446,537 375,006,997

109,231,799

3.43

50.95 35.21

5,458,318,829

109,231,799

3,738 465,717

109,231,799

5,555,652,136

109,231,799

3,M6,005,599
109 231,799

34.23

35.2150.86

5,M8,112,255
109,231,799

3,846,005,599

109.231.79S

19.88 35.2'l

243,670,n6

1C9,231,799

62,809.422

109 799

0.582.23

203,570,371

109,231,799

62.809.422

109,231,799

1.86 0.s8

322,026,097

367,884,649

425,921,011

(221,695,851)

469,81,r98
(726,866,688)

(73,139, 1 65)

11,247,528

1247 ,527,714].

(83,470,292)

243.582,182

3m.038,r02
379,093,795

1167,%2,147)
475,837,406

(1,M1,150,132)

51,485,699

137.000,454

(346,710,585)

31,574,048

_-qa!9-e.,{4

DHAKA
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For the year ended

30 JUNE 202'l

Consolidated Nel profil for the year

Number of shares

Consolidated Basic eamings per share (EPS)

49.97

.\, ]i



26.4A Reconciliation of net operating consolidated cash flow:

Nel profit before tax

Adjustment for:

Changes in

Prolll after tax from Joint venlure

lnteresl expenses

lnmme lax paid

Depreciation

lnventones

S€cunty oeposils
Advances and prepayments

oelerred LC

Liabilities for expenses

243,582.182

300,038,702

379,093,795

1167,%2,147)
475,837,406

(1,041,150,132)

51,485,699

137,000,454

(346,710,585)

31 574,048

_________92N-g

There was no credil facility available lo the company under any conlract, other than trade credit available n the ordinary course of

business and not avarled of as on 30 06 2021

28. Payment of Foreign Cunency

The company rncurs foeign cunenry expenses through lmport of Machinery & spare parts of the machinery and import of Raw

l\4ateflals.

No otherexpense included consultancy fee, royalty, technrcalexpert and professional advisory fee, intoresl, etc. was incured or
paid in foreign cunencies except as stated above.

29. Foreign Exchange Eamed

Compnay has no foreign curency inmme during the year except tumover of Joinl Venture Partnership 'ihich has beeen disc,osed
in lherr respective s€parale accounts

No other income including consultancy fee, royalty, technical expert and professional advisory fee, inleresl, elc. was incuned or
paid in forergn cunencies except as slaled above.

30. Commission, Brokorage or Dhcount against sale!

No commission was incuned or paid to distnbutors, agents nor any brokerage or dismunts w€re incuned or paid againsl sales

Segment Reporting

The Company operates under ooe single business and geographic segment. As a resull, s€parate segment reporting is not

necessary.

32. Related party transactions (as per IAS-24)

Details of Transactions

Drsclosure as per requrrements of schedule XL, ra-4 of the com anres acl-1994

31

oo
i

0

311,619.523

367,884,649

425,921,011

(221,695,851)

469,291 ,'t 98

(7m,866,688)

(73,139,165)

(18,480,803)

1247 ,527 ,714)
(83,435,793

Drreclors Remuneralon Drrector Salary and Festival Bonus 560,000

lvlir Telecom Ltd Common Rental Expenses 560 059

Direclors Remuneraton 560,000 7 840.000 (7,840,000)

Mrr Telecom Ltd 560 C59 6,720,710 (6,720,710)

ilame ol pani6 Op€ning Balance Addition Adjustments

560 000

560,05S

Closing Balance

Llir Nasir Hossain Nranag ng Direclor 4,800,000 800,000

Mr Shama e'zaheer Drrector & COO 1 920 000 320,000

Remuneration Bonus

5,600,000

2,240 000

DHAKA
GKAN21 22nA

- ,

R !A

For the year endsd

3t) JUNE 2021

l{am€ of parties Reladonship Purpose Balance

For the year €nded

30 JUilE m20

203.570,370

21. CapitalExpenditureCommitment

Ealance

Totall{ame of the DlrecloIs Position

cage 38



For lhe year ended

30 JUIE 2021

Total 7,840,000

ln addition, as per requirements of Paragraph 17 of IAS 24, the Company provided mmpensation to key management persotrnel

whid includeds Chief Financaal Offcer

3l.runo 202'1 3l-June 2020

Key Management Compensalion (excluding Directols) 14,739,710 16,536,528

Period of payments lo Drreclors from 01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021. The above directors of lhe company were nol paid other than

the above remuneration.

a. Expenses reimbursed to lhe managing agenl Nil

b. Commission or other remuneralion payable separately lo a managing agenlor his associates- Nil

c. Commission received or receivable by the managing agenl or his associates of buying agent of other concems in respect of

contracls enlered into such with the company - Nil

d. The money value of the contEcts for the sale or purchase of goods and materials or supply of services, entered into by lhe

company with the managing agent or his associates during lhe financial year' Nil

e. Any other perquisities or benefits in cash or in kind slating -Nil

f. Other allowances and mmmission including mmmission-Nil

33 Attendance slatus of Board Meeting of Direclors

Dunng the penod froflr 01 07.20 to 30 06 2021 there were 4 (four) Board meeting were held The attendance statls of all the

fl'teetl rs as follows

34 Status of income tax assessment

35. ContinEellt liabililies and conting€nt asrsts

There is a contingent liability of Tk. 77,90,736 in respect of tax claim in lhe assessment yeat 2012-13. This matter has been

appealed lo the honourable Hagh Court and is still pending

36.

37. Events after reporting date

There is no adjusling and non,adjusting post balance sheelevenl of such importanc€, non disclosure or recognilion of which would

affect the ability to the us€rs oi the linancial statements lo make p.oper evaluation and decisions

R coat

[.4ir Nasrr hossain Managing Director 4 41

4 42

43 lrlrs L,lahbuba Hossain D rector

1 lvlr Shama€-zaheer Drrector and COO A

5 Md Fand Uddrn ndependent D rector 4 4

AKIVI Faizur Rahman lndependent Drrector 4 46

lndependent Direclor t7 Prol Dr N,luhammad Shanat Ullah

lndependent Drreclor 4Prof Nausheen Rahman

st
No

tlam€ of oirectors Position ileeting Held Attended

I

2419.20 2020-21 Aisessmenl rs under process

2019,20 Assessmenl completed and setlled2018 19

2018 19 Assessment compleled and setlled2011-18

2011.18 Assessment compleled and settled

2416-17 Assessment completed and s€ttled

Pr*ent statuslncome year

DHAKA
Pa0e 39 Mk Akhler Hossan LrmLted

For the year endod

30JUilE 2020

l{umb€r of employs€. sngagcd

Total number of employees having annual salary of B0T 36,0q) or above each was '1967 as at 30 June 2021 and 1690 as at 30

June 2020.

0irectorlvlrs Sohela hossain

4

2

28

Assessment year

201617

2015-16

cKdN2122nA



38. Details of Lease Agreement:

The company does not have any assets or liablilities under fnanc€ lease agreements. The companys operalions rcnl their faclities

under a non,conlrolling operating lease. The total lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2021 was TK 21,848,579 {also
included in Note 21)

39. Operating Debt

( I ) oebt considered good in resp€ct of wtich the company is tully 3scur€d :

The debtores occuned in the ordinary mulse of business are considered good and secured

(ll) Debt comidered good for wiich the compary hold no security other than the deblot! peEonal security

There is no such debt in this respect as on 30 June' 2021.

(lll) Debt considered doubttul or bad

The company does nol make any provision lor doubtful debts as on 30 June'2c21, because of the fact that sales/export are being

made on regular basis wth fixed maturity dates

(lV) oebt due by dirccloB or other officet! ot the company

There rs no such debt rn this respect as on 30 June 2021

40 Financial Risk Management

The Company is exposed to risks ofvarying degrees of significance thal could affect its ability to achieve ils slrategic obleclives

The main objectives of the Company's risk management process are to ensure that risks are prcperly idenliUed and the capital

base is adequate rn relalion to these dsks.

The Company is exposed through its operations to lhe following financEl risks

A lnterest rate Risk

B. Cunency Risk

A. lnteEt Rate Rbk

The Company's exposure lo the risk of changes in interest rates relales pnmarily to lhe Company's loans payable An increase of

1% in the average interest rate for the Company would result in approximately additional expenses of BDT 10,874,6M in the

curenl year

B. Cun€ncy Risk

The Compan/s cash flows are impacted by curency movemenls as a significanl portion ol the Company's rarir mateials are

purchased in US dollars. An increase of BDT 1 and BDT 2 in lhe l..JS dollar to BDT exchange rate would have resulted in an

eslimated decrease to net inmme of approximately B0T 6,752,162 and BDT 13,504,324 resp€ctively in the cunent year.

41 oate ol Authoriration:
The Board of Direclors have authonzed these financiai statements on 26 '10 2021

DHAKA
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For the year ended

30 JUilE 2021

For the yeal ended

30 JUi{E 2020

M Debt due bylfrom Common Managemenl

The company has no receivable from sister mmpanies under common management. For more detarls relaled to lhis receivable,

refer lo Note 32'Related Party Transaciions'
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